
MINUTES 
BOARD OF HEALTH 

TOWNSHIP OF CHATHAM 
JUNE 12, 2018 

  
Mr. Nachtigal called the reorganization meeting of the Board of Health to order at 7:38 P.M. 
 
Adequate notice of this meeting of the Board of Health was given as required by the Open 
Public Meetings Act as follows: Notice was given to both the Chatham Courier and the Morris 
County Daily Record on January 10, 2018; notice was posted on the bulletin board in the main 
hallway of the Municipal Building on January 10, 2018; and notice was filed with the Township 
Clerk on January 10, 2018.  
 
Roll Call 
 
Answering present to the roll call were Mrs. Chang, Mrs. Gardner and Mr. Nachtigal.   Mr. 
Fitzpatrick, Mr. Samara and Mrs. Dolan were also present.  Mr. Selen, Mrs. Plantemoli and Ms. 
Taormina was absent.   
   
Approval of Minutes  
 
In reviewing the March 13, 2018 minutes, Mr. Nachtigal asked if Mr. Samara had witnessed the 
discharge from the Fairmount Country Club Pool.  Mr. Samara said he has an update on that 
matter during his monthly reports.   
  
Mrs. Gardner moved to approve the minutes of the March 13, 2018 meeting.  Mrs. Chang 
seconded the motion, and it carried unanimously. 
 
Reports  

 
Registered Environmental Health Specialist 
  
Mr. Samara reported that in March, several retail food establishments were inspected, and all 
were found to be satisfactory.  Retail food establishment inspections continued in April, and a 
septic repair was inspected.   
 
Mr. Samara reported that a meeting was held with George Ross from the Fairmount Country 
Club regarding the new pool and pool house being installed.  The pool is not yet open, but should 
be ready within the next couple weeks.  Temporary bath and shower facilities will be used 
because the pool house will not be ready until September.  Mr. Nachtigal asked about the 
backwash discharge.  Mr. Samara said he believes there is a dry well for the discharge.  Mr. 
Nachtigal asked if there was a DEP discharge permit for the pool on file with the Township.   
 
Mr. LaConte noted that all pool licenses have been issued except for Fairmount Country Club 
due to the ongoing pool construction, and Heritage Greene because they had done pool-related 
work without permits and need to have the appropriate inspections performed by the 
Construction Department.   
 
Public Health Nurse  
 
Mrs. Dolan distributed nursing reports for March, April and May.  She also reported that flu 
season as of March 31st, and there were 172 pediatric deaths nationally during this flu season.  
Mrs. Dolan said that there has been an increase in influenza-like symptoms.  In March and April, 
a summary of exemptions for vaccinations was prepared, and the exemptions were typically 
religious.  Mr. Nachtigal asked about tick-borne diseases.  Mrs. Dolan said that she receives 
quarterly updates.  She noted the new presence of the longhorned tick in Hunterdon, Union and 
Bergen County.  Mr. Nachtigal asked about incidences of Lyme disease in Chatham Township.  
Mrs. Dolan said that she did not have information specific to Chatham Township, however 
Morris County has the highest number of cases.  She also said that Lyme may be underreported.  
Mrs. Dolan further commented on diagnosis and treatment of Lyme Disease.  Mrs. Dolan further 
noted that she has a graphic available for posting on the Township website about how to remove 
a tick.     



 2 

 
Mrs. Dolan reported that she will be conducting audit workshops for preschool heads and nurses. 
It is an opportunity for her to review with the preschools anything new regarding immunizations.    
 
There was a case of elevated lead, and the current standard for elevated levels is 5 micrograms 
per deciliter and higher, which triggers a nursing investigation.  If there is a second reading of 5 
or higher, then an environmental inspection is conducted.  Mr. Nachtigal noted that 5 is a low 
threshold, and Mr. Fitzpatrick said that the CDC has recommended lowering the threshold to 3.5.   
 
Mrs. Dolan further reported that there is a new Ebola vaccine that has been shown to be effective 
in Africa, and it is still experimental.   
 
Mr. LaConte asked about the chicken pox vaccine, and if people who were vaccinated could 
potentially get shingles.  Mrs. Dolan said that anyone who has not had chicken pox will not get 
shingles, however someone who has been vaccinated against chicken pox could potentially still 
get it.  There is also a shingles vaccination available.  Mr. Nachtigal asked if there is any danger 
to getting the shingles vaccination if you have not had chicken pox.  Mrs. Dolan said that there is 
not known to be any danger.  Mr. Fitzpatrick noted a recent potential exposure to measles when a 
family from Bloomfield traveled to Florida.   
 
Registrar of Vital Statistics  
 
Mr. LaConte reported that fees were collected for the following items in March 2018:   
     

3 Marriage License       $84 
6 Marriage Certificates       $45 

 23 Death Certificates                 $130 
      Total              $259 
 
Mr. LaConte noted that a payment of $175 was made to the State of New Jersey for their portion 
of the fees collected for 7 marriage licenses.   
 
Mr. LaConte reported that fees were collected for the following items in April 2018:   
     

4 Marriage License     $112 
 2 Marriage Certificates       $15 
      Total              $127  
 
Mr. LaConte reported that fees were collected for the following items in May 2018:   
     

3 Marriage License       $84 
 8 Marriage Certificates       $55 
      Total              $139  
 
Health Officer  
 
Mr. Fitzpatrick reported that he was involved in the review of the Fairmount Country Club Pool 
previously discussed by Mr. Samara.   
 
 
Mr. Nachtigal moved to accept the reports.  Mrs. Gardner seconded the motion, which carried 
unanimously.   
 
Septic System Applications  
  
596 River Road – Block 62, Lot 55 
 
Mr. LaConte provided an update on a question raised by Ms. Taormina about notice to neighbors 
about this application.  He said that the applicant had sent notice by certified mail and submitted 
proof thereof, however the certified mailings were not sent return receipt requested.  Mr. 
LaConte said that return receipt requested is required by ordinance if the septic bed is less than 
25 feet from a property line, unless that property line is a street.  Mr. Nachtigal said that the 



 3 

application meets the setback requirements from the lots on either side, and the property line in 
which the proposed bed is only one foot away is the street.  He also said that if a time comes 
when the proposed system fails, it would flow toward the street.  Mr. Nachtigal further noted that 
due to slopes on the property, it does not appear practical to locate the disposal field in the rear of 
the property.  Mr. Samara concurred that the conditions in the rear of the property are not 
conducive to a disposal field.   
 
Mr. Nachtigal noted that the new system proposes an elevated bed and an aeration tank after the 
septic tank.  Mr. Nachtigal also said that the Board Engineer has given their approval for the 
application.     
 
Mr. LaConte said that the applicant has submitted that proof that notice was sent to property 
owners within 200 feet.  He also said that a question came up if the ordinance requires proof of 
service for this type of application.   
 
Mr. Fitzpatrick said that the notice requirement in question only applies when the proposed 
disposal field is less than 25 feet from a property line, not including municipal roads.   Mr. 
LaConte read the relevant section of the code book into the record.  The ordinance specifies that 
a municipal street shall not be considered an adjacent lot.  Mr. LaConte also noted that notice 
was sent to neighbors due to the variances included in the application.   
 
Mr. Nachtigal read into the record the memorandum from Board Engineer John Ruschke in 
which he states that Mott MacDonald takes no exception to the approval of the system.  The 
memorandum also noted that proposed retaining walls may be subject to additional engineering 
review.    
 
Mr. Nachtigal moved to approve the application for 596 River Road subject to the conditions set 
forth in the memoranda from Mott MacDonald dated May 17, 2018 and May 30, 2018.  Mrs. 
Gardner seconded the motion.   
 
Roll call: Mr. Selen, Absent; Mrs. Chang, Aye; Mrs. Gardner, Aye; Mrs. Plantemoli, Absent;  
Mr. Nachtigal, Aye. 
 
Discussion 
 
Mr. Nachtigal asked if the members of the Board had any discussion items to bring up.  There 
were not any items to be discussed.   
 
Meeting Open to Public 
 
Mr. Nachtigal opened the meeting to the public.   
Seeing no comment, the public hearing was closed.   
 
 
Mrs. Gardner moved to adjourn at 8:33 PM.  Mr. Nachtigal seconded the motion, and it carried 
unanimously.  
 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Gregory J. LaConte 
       Board of Health Secretary  


	Reports
	Meeting Open to Public

